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324 East 5th Street RFP Addendum 1 
RFP Issue Date: May 29, 2025 

Pre-submission Conference Date: June 23, 2025 

Addendum 1 Issue Date: July 14, 2025 
 

Contents of the Addendum 

A. Questions and Answers — Enclosed are questions and answers that were asked at the pre-

submission conference on June 23, 2025, as well as questions sent to the RFP email address 

through July 7, 2025. 

B. RFP Corrections and Updates — Corrections made to the RFP, forms, or appendices  

C. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those individuals who registered for 

the pre-submission conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact 

information. 

  



2 

A. Questions and Answers  
 

General 
1. Will slides be sent after the meeting to all attendees? 

The slides are posted on the project website and can be found here. 
 

2. Will we receive the attendee list? 
RFP Addendum 1 will include a list of all the attendees who RSVPed and checked the box to give 
HPD permission to share their contact information.  
 

3. Will the NYPD be actively reviewing proposals? Will they be actively involved in the ULURP 
process? 
The NYPD is not anticipated to be part of the Submissions review process, although HPD may 
confer with NYPD during the process for feedback on things like feasibility and adherence to 
Appendix F requirements. NYPD may be involved in the ULURP process, but HPD will be the lead 
agency.  

 
4. Is this design only or design build? Is expediting a part of the RFP? 

Teams should follow the guidelines of the RFP. The Project is not anticipated to be design-build. 
The Project will go through ULURP and financial closing before any necessary approvals will be 
obtained from the Department of Buildings. 

 
5. What weight will be given to design innovation and building something that is in context with 

the neighborhood versus execution capacity? 
Respondents should refer to B. REVIEW CRITERIA under IV. SELECTION PROCESS in the RFP for 
score weighting.   

 
6. Will shortlisted teams have an opportunity to present live before final selection? 

Yes. A sub-set of highly scoring Respondents will be invited for in-person interviews at HPD 
before designation. 

 
7. Regarding submission best practices, can architecture submissions also avoid page spreads? 

Does HPD prefer letter sized 8.5” x 11”? 
Architecture submissions may be in spread format. The guidance only applies to pages with text. 
 

8. Will HPD be organizing a site visit, or is there a protocol we should follow if we wish to enter 
the parking lot for purposes of looking at existing conditions? 
HPD does not offer site access during the RFP phase. The Site is currently in use by the NYPD’s 
9th precinct, and members of the public should not try to enter the Site. Once a Development 
Team is designated, they will work with HPD to obtain a license agreement for site access to 
conduct environmental testing, site surveying, etc.   

 
Development Team 

9. Will some preference be given to a developer partnering with a CLT? 
Please refer to the Section V. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS AND COMPETITIVE PREFERENCES of 
the RFP for detailed information on requirements and preferences. Development Teams are 
permitted to propose a CLT in their Submissions.   

https://www.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/east5th-rfp.page
https://www.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/east5th-rfp-submit-response.page
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10. Can a CLT participate on multiple teams if they are not in the ownership structure? 

Yes. Individuals or firms may be a part of multiple Development Teams, but may not have an 
ownership interest in more than one Respondent submitting a Proposal. 
 

11. The RFP makes mention of HPD prior discussion of what a CLT deal structure would look like. 
For example, using an HDFC Nominee Structure over a Ground Lease Structure. Is there a pre-
envisioned way to structure a CLT into a project? 
HPD has used the CLT structure for some of its homeownership projects. These projects use a 
CLT ground lease structure, based on the Grounded Solutions model ground lease. The CLT (and 
coop, if applicable) also has a Regulatory Agreement with HPD. HPD has not often used the CLT 
structure for rental projects. These projects are typically owned by an HDFC that has a nominee 
agreement with a managing member. RFP respondents should propose whatever structure they 
believe best fulfills the goals of the RFP. 
 

12. Does HPD has a preference on Joint Venture vs 100% ownership for this RFP? 
 HPD does not have a preference on Joint Ventures vs sole ownership structures so long as the 
Development Team meets HPD’s Equitable Ownership Requirement to include an M/WBE or 
eligible non-profit that in either case will hold at least 25% of the managing ownership interest 
in the Project.  
 

Development Assumptions 
13. Is there a preferred HPD term sheet that participants should look at? 

Per RFP Project Goals, Respondents should ensure that 100% of the residential units are income-
restricted to be affordable to a mix of household incomes and comply with the HPD-HDC term 
sheet selected by the Respondent as most appropriate based on feasibility as well as ability to 
meet the needs outlined in the Community Visioning Report. 
 

14. Is subdividing the zoning lot to separate from the school a requirement? 
Yes, Respondents should assume that the tax and zoning lots will be subdivided in the future.   
 

15. Please clarify the lot size: Lot depth is 96.17’ per tax map, but 96’ per RFP. Which figure should 
teams be using?  
Per the RFP, Respondents should assume a lot depth of 96’ as shown in the Site Description. 
 

16. Can you clarify the acceptable amount of greenspace for proposals?  
Respondents should follow the Zoning Resolution for requirements. Additionally, per RFP design 
guidelines, Respondents are encouraged to incorporate green space throughout the project as 
part of the design. 
 

17. Since the community visioning lists seniors and homeless as the top 2 populations in need, 
does HPD envision SARA being an appropriate term sheet to achieve the goals of the RFP? 
Please refer to Question 13. 
 

18. Since the need for senior units was identified in HPD talks with community, should the design 

team consider including a number of smaller senior units? Does HPD has a preference on 

specific unit mix for the RFP? 
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Respondents should follow HPD term sheets and design guidelines for guidance on design and 
construction requirements. 
 

19. The existing NYPD parking currently crosses the midblock and abuts PS 751. The RFP says that 

Floor area from the south portion of the tax lot is not available, but can we maintain this 

existing encroachment of NYPD beyond the midblock? 

Please refer to the site area provided in the RFP. 

 

NYPD Parking 
20. Can NYPD Parking be excluded from zoning floor area? (will HPD facilitate MZO for this?) 

For purposes of the RFP, Respondents may assume the parking is a compliant use and permitted 
rear yard obstruction. HPD will work with the Development Team as needed to receive the 
proper approvals.  
 

21. Is parking calculated based on size of the lot? Does parking count as permitted obstruction to 
rear yard? 
Please See Question 20.  

 
22. In an effort to try and maximize parking, can the teams propose underground parking? How 

about the use of mechanical stackers? 
Per guidance in the RFP, teams should not propose parking stackers. The Project will include 
replacement parking space with approximately 25 spaces on the ground level of the building for 
the NYPD’s 9th Precinct. 
 

23. The RFP doesn’t speak to number of sedans and SUVs we should assume. Any additional 
guidelines on NYPD parking? 
Per Appendix F, NYPD requires space for 2 passenger vans. The remainder of the spaces can 
accommodate either vans or sedans.   
 

24. Can HPD confirm that the NYPD parking will be a condominium conveyed back to the City? Is 
25 spots a threshold requirement? 
Yes, the NYPD parking space will be a condominium that will be conveyed back to the City. The 
25 parking spots are not a requirement, but Respondents should do their best to get as close to 
this number as possible. Any deviation should be explained in the narrative portion of the 
Proposal. 
 

Zoning 
25. What is the maximum height the building at 324 E 5th St can be?   

Per the RFP, Respondents should assume a zoning district of R7X in their Submissions. Please 
refer to the Zoning Resolution for specific guidance on permitted bulk and height. 
 

26. How would HPD guarantee that the ULURP will be successful? If the rezoning is not successful, 
will HPD proceed with the project with the selected developer with as-of-right zoning? 
HPD will work closely with the Development Team throughout the ULURP process. HPD led a 

robust community engagement process prior to RFP release, and will continue to work with the 

Development Team on engagement throughout pre-ULURP and ULURP.  
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B. RFP Corrections and Updates 
1. Form B: The internet Access Plan has been removed from the RFP. Please use the updated 

Form B released with this addendum. 

2. Form E-5: This form has been updated to provide more clarity on what information teams 

should be providing. Please read carefully to make sure you filled out this form correctly. 

3. HPD term sheets – NEW: HPD has released new term sheets. Please follow the link. Pleas 

follow these updated terms sheets in Submissions.  

https://www.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/new-construction-financing.page


 

 

C. Contact Information for Pre-Submission Conference RSVPs Who Opted Share 

Their Information 

Organization Name Email May we share your contact 
information?  

Milestone Aaron Koffman akoffman@milestonecos.com Yes 

Seva Engineering Abhishek abhishek@sevaengineering.com Yes 

Cooper Square Committee Abigail Ellman Abigaile@coopersquare.org Yes 

Forsyth Street Aileen Gribbin agribbin@forsythstreet.com Yes 

LVF Landscape Architects Alexia Friend alexia@lvfla.com Yes 

Sega Contracting Corp. Ali Zulfiqar info@segacontracting.com Yes 

Selfhelp Realty Group Alison Lam alam@selfhelp.net Yes 

Cadence Development Allon Morgan allondmorgan@gmail.com Yes 

The Bridge, Inc. Amelia O'Rourke aorourke@thebridgeny.org Yes 

Ametrine Group  Amy Larovere  amy.larovere@alconsulting.us Yes 

Shakespeare Gordon Studio  Amy Shakespeare amy@sg.studio Yes 

Curtis + Ginsberg Architects Ana Bozicevic marketing@cplusga.com Yes 

Asian Americans for Equality Andrea Alexopoulos andrea_alexopoulos@aafe.org Yes 

ESKW/Architects Andrew Knox aknox@eskwarchitects.com Yes 

Slate Property Group Andrew Olivo aolivo@slatepg.com Yes 

Keller williams New York living 
Solution  

Andrew P Ziff  aziff@kw.com Yes 

Women in Need, Inc. Anthony Andreano aandreano@winnyc.org Yes 

Novis Living Asher Toporovsky asher@novisliving.com  Yes 

Shakespeare Gordon Studio Ashima Chitre ashima@sg.studio Yes 

ZI Engineering, PC | MBE/DBE Atika Naeem atika@ziengineering.com Yes 

Henge Development LLC Ayanna Oliver-Taylor ayanna@hengedevelopment.com Yes 

JGM Inc Azmat Aulakh aaulakh@jgminc.com Yes 

SD Builders Ben Dalton-Brush bdaltonbrush@sdbuildersny.com Yes 

Urbahn Architects Brad deboseb@urbahn.com Yes 

mailto:akoffman@milestonecos.com
mailto:abhishek@sevaengineering.com
mailto:Abigaile@coopersquare.org
mailto:agribbin@forsythstreet.com
mailto:alexia@lvfla.com
mailto:info@segacontracting.com
mailto:alam@selfhelp.net
mailto:allondmorgan@gmail.com
mailto:aorourke@thebridgeny.org
mailto:amy.larovere@alconsulting.us
mailto:amy@sg.studio
mailto:marketing@cplusga.com
mailto:andrea_alexopoulos@aafe.org
mailto:aknox@eskwarchitects.com
mailto:aolivo@slatepg.com
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mailto:atika@ziengineering.com
mailto:ayanna@hengedevelopment.com
mailto:aaulakh@jgminc.com
mailto:bdaltonbrush@sdbuildersny.com
mailto:deboseb@urbahn.com


 

 

Women in Need, Inc. Brennen Fields bfields@winnyc.org Yes 

The Bridge or its affiliates 
(HDFC, LP,GP) 

Carole Gordon cgordon@thebridgeny.org Yes 

Habitat NYC & Westchester charlotte bell  cbell@habitatnycwc.org Yes 

Think! Architecture + Design Charlotte Wensley charlotte@think-arc.com Yes 

Brisa Builders Chima Joseph chimajoseph@brisabuilders.com Yes 

Ametrine Group  Christine Chisholm  christine.chisholm@alarovereconsulting.us  Yes 

Supreme Security Services, Inc. Corrine supremeacademy@aol.com Yes 

BRC Daughtry Carstarphen, AIA dcarstarphen@brc.org Yes 

HELP Development Corp. David Cleghorn dcleghorn@helpdevco.org Yes 

Architecture Planning pllc David Cunningham david@dcapny.com Yes 

Construction Information 
Systems 

Debra L Sauerman debras@cisleads.com Yes 

Andrea Steele Architecture Dichen dichen@asa-ten.com Yes 

NSP Enterprises, Inc. Didi Garcia accounting@nspenterprises.com Yes 

Settlement Housing Fund, Inc. Eliot Hetterly ehetterly@shfinc.org Yes 

Fairstead Ellen Shakespear ellen.shakespear@fairstead.com Yes 

Spatial Equity Co Elliot Raskin elliot@spatialequity.com Yes 

RiseBoro Community 
Partnership 

Emily Kurtz ekurtz@riseboro.org Yes 

HELP Development Corp. Emma Colley ecolley@helpdevco.org Yes 

PMG Gavin Morrison gmorrison@pmgaffordable.com Yes 

Your Dream Contractors Inc. Gigi Gigileewic@gmail.com Yes 

Chiarisa Group, LLC Glenda Alfonso glenda@chiarisa.com Yes 

NERIS LLC Gordon R Hart Ghart@neris.nyc Yes 

SKF Development, LLC Greg Roberts groberts@skfdevelopment.com Yes 

Institute for Community Living 
Inc. 

Greg White gregory.white@iclinc.net Yes 

Arquitectonica Hunter Tura htura@arquitectonica.com Yes 

Dynamic Build Igor Mar i.mar@dynamicbuild.com Yes 

The Briarwood Organization Ira Brown ibrown@briarwoodorg.com Yes 
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Your Dream Contractors INC Jack Peng jackhpeng3@gmail.com Yes 

Achieve Engineering Janette Wu jw1007@achieveengineer.com Yes 

Tsai Plus Jay Tsai jay@tsaiplus.com Yes 

Beacon Communities Jennifer Steinberg jsteinberg@beaconcommunitiesllc.com Yes 

One Bar Development Jessica Sherman jsherman@onebardevelopment.com Yes 

Melissa Johnson Associates, Inc. Jessie Cohen jcohen@melissajohnsonassociates.com Yes 

Type A Projects LLC Jill Crawford Crawford@typeaprojects.com Yes 

Rafael Vinoly Architects PC Jim jherr@vinoly.com Yes 

Building Studio Architects John Field jfield@buildingstudio.com Yes 

The Penta Group John Napolitano J.Napolitano@pentarestoration.com Yes 

WHITE HUDSON LLC John-Hudson White white.h.john@gmail.com Yes 

Leroy Street Studio Jonathan Grzywacz jgrzywacz@leroystreetstudio.com Yes 

Fleming Lee Shue Jordan Arey jordan@flemingleeshue.com Yes 

The NRP Group Joyce Kwon jkwon@nrpgroup.com Yes 

Westhab, Inc. Justine McPherson justine.mcpherson@westhab.org Yes 

Comunilife Karuna Mehta Kmehta@comunilife.org Yes 

ESKW/Architects Kimberly Murphy kmurphy@eskwarchitects.com Yes 

MaGrann Associates Laila Coelho Reilly lailareilly@magrann.com Yes 

Landair Inc Leith ter Meulen leith@landair.us Yes 

Fairstead Lilah Brenowitz lilah.brenowitz@fairstead.com Yes 

MS Savani Architect, PC M.S. Savani Architect, PC mss@mssarch.com Yes 

Architecture Outfit Marta Sanders marta@archoutfit.com Yes 

BK Cleaning Services Inc Mekel Bennett mekelbennett1966@gmail.com Yes 

M Marte Studio Melida Marte marte@mmartestudio.com Yes 

Hill West Architects Michael Stevick mstevick@hillwest.com Yes 

Michelle Jubran Architect, PC Michelle Anne Jubran majarch24@gmail.com Yes 

Michelle Jubran Atchitect, PC Michelle Jubran Michellejubran@gmail.com Yes 

Project Renewal Michener laura.michener@projectrenewal.org Yes 

Rafael Vinoly Architects Mike morman@vinoly.com Yes 
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ZI Engineering, PC | 
MBE/DBE/SBE  

Naim Rasheed naim@ziengineering.com Yes 

B&V Contracting Enterprises, 
Inc.  

Neel Patel npatel@bandvcontracting.com Yes 

AAFE Nelson Chan nelson_chan@aafe.org Yes 

Langan Nicole Campo ncampo@langan.com Yes 

Forsyth Street Advisors Olga Jobe ojobe@forsythstreet.com Yes 

Melissa Johnson Associates, Inc. Olivia King oking@melissajohnsonassociates.com Yes 

Bright Power Patrick Slutter pslutter@brightpower.com Yes 

Notias Construction Inc. Paul Apostolakis papostolakis@notias.us Yes 

Paul A. Castrucci, Architects 
PLLC 

Paul Castrucci paul@castrucciarchitect.com Yes 

RKTB Architects, P.C. Peter Bafitis pbafitis@rktb.com Yes 

Forsyth Street Peter Beck pbeck@forsythstreet.com Yes 

Praxes PRAXES praxes@praxes-ny.com Yes 

Ametrine Group  Rachel Goodfriend rachel.goodfriend@alconsulting.us  Yes 

MBT Development Advisors LLC Ralph Declet rd@mbtadvisorygroup.com Yes 

ESKW/Architects Randy Wood rwood@eskwarchitects.com Yes 

Hill West Architects Reality Curry rcurry@hillwest.com Yes 

ARExA Rik Ekstrom rik.ekstrom@are-a.net Yes 

Leroy Street Studio Roy Leone rleone@leroystreetstudio.com Yes 

WSP Geomatics Ryan ryan.moore@wsp.com Yes 

SLM Architecture, P.C. | Design 
Solutions, Inc. 

Sakeenah Saleem ssaleem@thinkslm.com Yes 

Dynamix Scaffold Group LLC Sameera Najam Sameera@dynamixscaffold.com Yes 

Social Strategies Group, Inc. 
MWBE  

Sandra Goodridge  sg@social-strategies-group.com  Yes 

ZI Engineering, PC | MBE/DBE Shahnaz Ramzan shahnaz@ziengineering.com Yes 

Shakespeare Gordon Studio Sida Tang sida@sg.studio Yes 

Fairstead Sonya Mantell sonya.mantell@fairstead.com Yes 

NSP Enterprises, Inc. Sotirios Plakoudas accounting@nspenterprises.com Yes 
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SO–IL Summer Liu summer@so-il.org Yes 

Perkins Eastman Sung Shik Kim ss.kim@perkinseastman.com Yes 

Curtis + Ginsberg Architects Tamar Kisilevitz tamar@cplusga.com Yes 

Spatial Equity Teghvir Sethi teg@spatialequity.com Yes 

Kane Aud Architecture Thedore Kane t.kane@Kane-aud.com Yes 

Women in Need, Inc. Thomas Chadeayne tchadeayne@winnyc.org Yes 

Women in Need, Inc. Troy Bian tbian@winnyc.org Yes 

Uncle Tomms Construction LLC Uncle Tomms Construction 
LLC 

cuncletomm@gmail.com Yes 

UAI Utkalika Panda upanda@uai-ny.com Yes 

This Land Is Ours CLT Valerio Orselli vorselli@hotmail.com Yes 

Vrex Construction INC Vedat Rexhepi vedat@vrex.net Yes 

Vrex Construction INC  Vedat Rexhepi info@vrex.construction Yes 

Zoria Construction NY Inc. Velvikram Sekar vsekar@zoriaconstruction.com Yes 

remolding and Construction  Verx  Construction  info@vrex.construction Yes 

Osborne Association  Wendell Walters wwalters@osborneny.org Yes 

Dynamix Scaffold Group LLC William Miranda bids@dynamixscaffold.com Yes 

Curtis+Ginsberg Architects Yeon Soo Kim ykim@cplusga.com Yes 

Fairstead Yuhan Hu yuhan.hu@fairstead.com Yes 

Realblock Partners Yves Dikoume yves.dkm@realblockpartners.com Yes 

DP Group General 
Contractors/Developers 

Zach Pilla zpilla@dpgroupgc.com Yes 

ZI Engineering, PC | MBE/DBE Zahid Ismail zismail@ziengineering.com Yes 

Future Green Landscape 
Architecture D.P.C. 

Zenobia Meckley zmeckley@futuregreenstudio.com Yes 
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